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January 18, 1977

Senator Ruben Ayala, Chairman
Senate Agriculture and Water Resources Committee
State Capitol, Room 4086

Assemblyman John Thurman, Chairman

Assembly Agriculture Committee

State Capitol, Room 4130

Dear Senator Ayala and Assemblyman Thurman:

I am pleased to forward the Auditor General's
report relating to the Dry Bean Research and

Marketing Program.

Cordiajly,

MIKE CULLEN
Chairman

Enclosure
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Honorable Mike Cullen

Chairman, and Members of the
Joint Legislative Audit Committee

State Capitol

Sacramento, California 95814

Dear Mr. Chairman and Members:

This letter report addresses the administration of the California Dry Bean

Research and Marketing Program by the Department of Food and
Agriculture. The following audit topics involve legal issues; the
Legislative Counsel's opinions supporting our positions are attached.

Conflicting Opinions Concerning the Referendum to Continue the Program

In August 1974, a referendum ballot to determine whether or not the Dry
Bean Research and Marketing Program would be continued was mailed to
affected producers and handlers. The referendum for reapproval of the
program was required by the Dry Bean Research and Marketing Program
instituted in July 1970.

The tabulation of the referendum ballots showed that 82 percent of the
producers voting and 65 percent of the handlers voting favored continu-
ation of the program. Based on that majority of ballots cast the program
was continued and is currently in existence. However, a difference of
opinion exists as to whether or not that referendum authorized the
reapproval of the marketing program.

The Food and Agriculture Code provides a number of alternative
procedures that may be followed to adopt or amend a marketing order.
However, in order for a marketing order or major amendment thereto to
be approved by referendum, Section 58993(c) of the Food and Agriculture
Code provides as follows:
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(c) That it has been approved by producers in a referendum
among producers that are directly affected. The director may
make the finding (1) if the valid votes case in such referendum
represent not less than 40 percent of the total number of
producers of the commodity of record with the department,
and (2) if the producers that cast ballots in the referendum In
favor of the marketing order or amendment to it represent not
less than 65 percent of the total number of producers that cast
ballots in the referendum and marketed not less than 51
percent of the total quantity of the commodity which was
marketed in the next preceding marketing season by all of the
producers that cast ballots in the referendum or if the
producers that cast ballots in the referendum in favor of the
marketing order or amendment represent not less than 51
percent of the total number of producers that cast ballots in
the referendum and marketed not less than 65 percent of the
total quantity of the commodity which was marketed in the
next preceding marketing season by all of the producers who
cast ballots in the referendum. (Emphasis added)

The tabulation of the referendum ballots cast showed that the 30 percent

of the number of producers that voted in this referendum is less than the
40 percent required by the above-cited code section. The Legislative
Counsel, in an opinion dated May 12, 1976 (attached), stated:

A vote of only 30 percent of the producers by number, of
which 86 percent voted for reapproval, is insufficient to
approve this marketing order.

The department's position is that the reapproval of the marketing order
was in accordance with the terms of the Dry Bean Research and
Marketing Program. The terms provide that a majority (51 percent) of the
ballots cast is sufficient to continue the program. This majority of ballots
cast must be by both number of producers and quantity of beans marketed.

The Legislative Counsel, in the same opinion cited above, stated:

In view of our conclusion as to the insufficiency of the vote for
reapproval under Section 59086, we have not considered the
provisions of the marketing order as to the vote required by it
for reapproval.

It appears that the uncertainty may result because of Section 59086 of the
Food and Agriculture Code. This section provides that the vote for
reapproval "shall be the same as used for original approval of a marketing
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order"; however, the same section specifies the action that the Director is
to take ". .. if no provision is made .. ." for the reapproval. The position
of the department is that the phrase, "...if no provision is made...,"
applies to all sentences in the section. The opinion of the Legislative
Counsel does not support the position of the department.

To eliminate the apparent ambiguity, the fourth sentence of Section 59086
of the Food and Agriculture Code should be amended. If in all cases the
provisions for reapproval are to be the same as the provisions for the
original approval, the sentence should be amended to read: The provisions
governing a vote to reapprove a marketing order shall be the same as the
provisions governing the vote to approve the original marketing order.

If varying reapproval provisions may be written into marketing orders, the
fourth sentence of Section 59086 should be amended to read: The
provisions to reapprove a marketing order shall be the same as the
provisions used to approve the original marketing order; however, when a
marketing order has its own provisions for reapproval, those marketing
order provisions shall govern.

Absence of Written Contract

The California Dry Bean Research and Marketing Program is administered
by a private consulting firm retained without a written contract by the
California Dry Bean Advisory Board. Members of this firm approve all
program cash disbursements, including payments to the firm. The Dry
Bean Advisory Board does not review or approve in advance the payments
to the firm.

In place of written contracts, the Department of Food and Agriculture has
accepted annual resolutions of the Board to retain the consulting firm.
The resolution adopted by the Board on July 8, 1975, for the 1975-76 fiscal
year, is as follows:

WHEREAS, Gordon W. Monfort has performed the duties of
Manager and Assistant Secretary and his organization, Monfort
Associates, has provided the required office facilities and staff
services in a manner satisfactory to the Board and the Bureau
of Marketing,

BE IT RESOLVED that the Director approve the retention of
him and his organization for the 1975-76 Marketing Season for
a total amount per annum of $36,408, which shall cover the
following: 1) employment of Gordon W. Monfort as Board
Manager at an annual rate of $21,384 for at least 70% of his
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time, employment of Gerald R. Munson as Assistant Board
Manager and Office Manager for an annual rate of $11,66%4 for
at least 45% of his time, and 2) furnishing office space,
utilities, special telephone equipment, postage meter mailing
machine and office equipment for a total annual cost of $3,360
to be billed to the Board monthly.

For responsible business practice, the Department of Food and Agriculture
should require the Board to enter into written contracts for the services
provided.

Omission of Items from Resolution

During the 1975-76 fiscal year, total payments to the consulting firm
amounted to $52,330. Payments included the expenditures authorized in
the above resolution and the costs of other services provided "as needed.”
A breakdown of these payments follows.

Expenses Specified in Resolution

Salaries of the Board Manager and
Assistant Manager $33,0u8

Facilities Rent 3,360

Total Costs Authorized
By Resolution $36,408

Expenses Not Specified in Resolution

Clerical Services (Billed on an

Hourly Basis) 9,374
Miscellaneous Expenses (Postage,

Copying, Freight, Etc.) 1,155
Travel Expenses 3,393

Additional Management Fees
(Large Lima Council) 2,000

Total Cost of Services
Provided "As Needed" 15,922

Total Payments to Consulting Firm
for 1975-76 Fiscal Year $52,330
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Both the resolution and the related contract should specify all services the
firm is to perform, as well as the amount of the payments they are to
receive.

Respectiully submitted,

Yda oale,E Ly
// ey g

John H. Williams®

Auditor General

Staff: Phillips Baker
Gary S. Ross
Nancy Lynn Szczepanik

Attachments: Response of Director, Department of Food and
Agriculture

Legislative Counsel's Opinion of May 12, 1976 (Question
No. 4 relates to the first audit topic).

Legislative Counsel's Opinion of November 17, 1976
(Question No. 2 relates to the second audit topic and
Question No. 3 relates to the third audit topic).



STATE OF CALIFORNIA EDMUND G. BROWN JR., Governor

DEPARTMENT OF FOOD AND AGRICULTURE

1220 N Street
Sacramento
95814

January 11, 1977

Mr. John H. Williams, Auditor General
Joint Legislative Audit Committee
Office of the Auditor General

Suite 750, 925 L Street

Sacramento, Califormia 95814

Dear Mr. Williams

In accordance with your letter of January 7, 1977, we are enclosing a
copy of the Department of Food and Agriculture's Response to the Auditor
General's Draft Letter Report 235.5 on the Dry Bean Research and
Marketing Program.

Sincerely

T

Acting Director

Enclosure



